
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the November 22, 2022 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS

No business to discuss.
  
4. REPORTS

 4.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties
located at 1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street 

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

825 Liberty Avenue - Comprehensive Plan Amendment and PUD
1475 Office Park Lane and 2525 Kennedy Drive - Water Main Easement 

  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

1118 Garfield Avenue - Comprehensive Plan Amendment and PUD
2909 Ford Street - Carwash 

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, December 7, 2022

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - December 7, 2022

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1683717/11-22-2022_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1682601/Dec_7_Staff_Report_4.a._-CSM-2022-14__1231_Ridgeway_St_.pdf


 

1 | P a g e  
 

        
MINUTES 

PLAN COMMISSION 
City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

7:00 PM 
Wednesday, November 22, 2022 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Chairperson Weeden called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. Chairperson Weeden, 
Commissioners Ramsden, Janke, Jacobsen, Flesch, Anderson, and Councilor Dunkin were 
present. Commissioner Toral was absent. 

 
2. MINUTES 

2.a. Consideration of the minutes of November 9, 2022 Plan Commission meeting 
Motion was made by Commissioner Ramsden, seconded by Commissioner Jacobsen to 
approve the minutes. Motion prevailed, voice vote (6-0). 
 

3. REPORTS 
3.a. Consideration of an Extraterritorial One-Lot Certified Survey Map in the Town of Beloit 

for the property located on the 1000 block of West Street 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Janke moved to approve the Resolution approving the Extraterritorial One-
lot Certified Survey Map for the property located on the 1000 block of West Street, 
seconded by Commission Anderson. Motion prevails, voice vote (6-0). 
 

3.b. Consideration of a Permanent Water Easement over the western 20 feet of 1475 Office 
Park Lane and 2525 Kennedy Drive 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Weeden asked if there were buildings on the lots currently. Ms. Christensen 
said that there were not, that the owner bought the lots in 2013 but never constructed 
anything on the lots.  The owner has submitted plans before but nothing has been 
constructed.  
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to approve the permanent water easement over the western 
20 feet of 1475 Office Park Lane and 2525 Kennedy Drive, seconded by Commission 
Ramsden. Motion prevails, voice vote (6-0). 

 

2



 

2 | P a g e  
 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
4.a. Consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Plan of the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan from Single Family Residential – Urban to Neighborhood Commercial for the 
property located at 1118 Garfield Avenue 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Ramsden asked Ms. Christensen what aesthetic improvements would be 
made that will improve the neighborhood.  Ms. Christensen said the owner plans to 
construct a new building which would improve the look of the neighborhood. Parking 
spaces would also be added.  It would stay the same use but with a better building than 
they have now. Commissioner Ramsden asked if the neighbors to the north on Garfield 
Avenue were notified. Ms. Christensen said that they did not get notified but will be 
notified for the PUD and Zoning Map Amendment.  
 
Commissioner Ramsden said that he is uncomfortable approving the amendment without 
the neighbors to the north being notified. Ms. Christensen explained that the neighbors 
would be notified for the PUD and Zoning Map Amendment.  Chairperson Weeden stated 
that if Plan Commission approves this tonight, they would be changing the Future Land 
Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan permanently, regardless what happens with the PUD. 
Ms. Christensen agreed.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked if when they approved the changes for 1112 Garfield Ave, 
if the neighbors were noticed. Ms. Christensen said they were noticed because they filed 
a Comprehensive Plan amendment at the same time as the rezoning.   Commissioner 
Jacobsen asked if the neighboring houses were owner-occupied or rental. Chairperson 
Weeden said that he went up to the house at 1112 Garfield Ave to ask if they cared about 
the zoning change that took place last year, and they said they just rent the house and do 
not care.   
 
Commissioner Anderson stated that the owner of this property just constructed the 
Marathon gas station on Prairie Avenue, and he did a great job with it. Commissioner 
Anderson said if the owner were to rebuild this building, he thinks it will be a huge 
improvement to the neighborhood. Commissioner Flesch asked if Plan Commission does 
not change the future Land Use Plan of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, would anyone be 
able to park there or make improvements to the parking area. Ms. Christensen mentioned 
that Plan Commission can lay the item over so the owner can be there to answer questions.  
This is the same meeting that the PUD and rezoning would be considered. 
 
Chairperson Weeden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to lay over the item until the second meeting in December, 
seconded by Commissioner Janke. Motion prevails, voice vote (6-0).  
 

3



 

3 | P a g e  
 

4.b. Consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan 
from Parks and Open Spaces to Two-Family/Townhouse Residential for the property 
located at 113 Bluff Street 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Ramsden asked how the city acquires land to add to parks and open spaces. 
Ms. Christensen said that the City can do a voluntary purchase if there are funds budgeted, 
and the City can apply for funds through a grant program to acquire parks and open spaces. 
Chairperson Weeden asked what kind of functionality does the open space have as a park. 
Ms. Christensen said it would just an open space area.  
 
Chairperson Weeden opened the public hearing. 
 
Mary Molique, 2349 Riverside Drive, indicated that she is surprised to hear that the land 
could be considered a green space.  The property has been in her family for 70 years, and 
she grew up there. Ms. Molique was hoping that the property would attract more interest 
if the home was rezoned as a duplex, like it has been in the past. Chairperson Weeden 
asked if Ms. Molique was aware of the period of vacancy, and that the affidavit that was 
signed would eliminate the possibility that it could ever be used as a two-family residence 
again. 
 
Ms. Molique said that she had gotten notices in the mail before, but was unaware that it 
could not be reversed back to a two-family home. Ms. Molique was wondering if the City 
would want to purchase the home. Chairperson Weeden asked Ms. Molique if the 
structure would be marketable if it were a single-family home. Ms. Molique said she 
believes there would be more interest in the property if it were to be sold as a duplex. 
Chairperson Weeden asked if the home could be changed back from a two-family to a 
single-family home.  
 
Ms. Molique said she thinks it would be very hard to convert it back. Chairperson Weeden 
asked what type of work was done to remodel the home. Ms. Molique said there was 
painting and new fixtures. Chairperson Weeden said the City has a policy that encourages 
single-family residential housing rather than rental housing, and it has been a long-
standing policy of the Council.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen said Ms. Molique was notified, and it is clear that the property lost 
its nonconforming status if the other side was not rented out. Commissioner Anderson 
said his concern would be if the City would acquire the land and there would be new 
development on that space, he would not feel right to let someone else come in to build 
because it is not valued as a duplex property anymore. Commissioner Flesch said that the 
set backs on the property would preclude any development from occurring because of the 
steep hill that goes down to the river, so if there would to be a fire it would be hard to 
rebuild on that location and he thinks green space would be a wise move.  

4



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Chairperson Weeden asked Commissioner Janke what Ms. Molique could do if she wanted 
to explore the possibility of selling the property to the City. Commissioner Janke said he 
does not work for the City anymore, but the challenge is that the long-term vision for the 
property is to be open space but that there is currently no budget for purchasing this 
property. Ms. Christensen said she thinks Ms. Molique could reach out to Bill Frisbee at 
the Public Works Department to see if the City would want to purchase the property.  
 
Chairperson Weeden closed the public hearing.  
 
Commissioner Janke moved to deny the amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan from Parks and Open Spaces to Two-Family/ Townhouse Residential 
for the property located at 113 Bluff Street, seconded by Commissioner Flesch. Motion 
prevails, voice vote (6-0).  
 

4.c. Consideration of an Ordinance amending the Zoning District Map from R-1B, Single-
Family Residential District to R-2, Two-Family Residential District for the property 
located at 113 Bluff Street 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Chairperson Weeden opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Flesch moved to deny the Zoning District Map from R-1B, Single-Family 
Residential District to R-2, Two-Family Residential District for 113 Bluff Street, seconded 
by Commissioner Anderson. Motion prevails, voice vote (6-0).  
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen updated the Plan Commission on the actions taken by City Council related to a 
variety of items previously reviewed by Plan Commission. Ms. Christensen said the next Plan 
Commission meeting is scheduled for December 7, 2022. 

 
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner Anderson 
at 8:05 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 

 
 
 

  
Tim Weeden, Chairperson 

5



  

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 7, 2022 
 
Agenda Item:  4.a. 
 
File Number:  CSM-2022-14 

General Information 

Applicant:  R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
Owner: Everett K Christensen; Steven M and Courtney K Zielinski 
Address/Location:  1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street     
Applicant’s Request: Three-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) to reconfigure existing lots on Ridgeway 
Street 
 
Staff Analysis 

Background Info:  R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc., on behalf of the owners of the four properties, has 
submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a three-Lot CSM for the properties 
located at 1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street.  

 
CSM Details:  The subject properties total 12.116 acres. This CSM is being prepared to allow two of the 
parcels to have deeper lots.  Lot 1 is proposed to be 10.63 acres and will add 0.35 acres back to the 
parcel that was previously carved out. Lot 2 is proposed to be 0.884 acres and Lot 3 to be 0.598 acres.  
Each of these lots is increasing a small amount in order to create deeper lots for a larger rear yard.  
 
The subject property and newly created lots are zoned R-1A, Single-Family Residential, and all three 
proposed lots exceed the minimum dimensions required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  No comments were submitted by the City’s review agents. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Three-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street in the City 
of Beloit, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of 
approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Proposed CSM, Application, Site Assessment Checklist, and Resolution. 

6



  

LOCATION MAP 
 

 

7



   
8



  

 

9



  

10



  

 11



  

RESOLUTION 
 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 
 1137, 1225, 1231, AND 1235 RIDGEWAY STREET 

 
WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the Plan Commission 
of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land 
within the jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 
1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street, containing 12.116 acres (combined), is located 
within the jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached three-
lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOT 1 AND OUTLOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP VOL. 32 PGS. 233-236, LOT 7 OF 
CERTIFIED SURVEY VOL. 23 PGS. 77-78, LOT 5 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP VOL. 20 PAGS. 
48-49, AND TH ENORTH 60 FEET OF LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP VOL. 1 PG. 56, ALL 
BEING PART OF THE NE ¼ AND SE ¼ OF THE SE ¼ OF SECTION  28., T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF 
THE 4TH P.M., CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
properties located at 1137, 1225, 1231, and 1235 Ridgeway Street, subject to the following 
condition: 

 
1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 

of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 
 
Adopted this 7th day of December, 2022. 

 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 
 
  _ 
 Tim Weeden, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen 
Community Development Director 

12


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2022-1128 - Attachment
	2022-1129 - Attachment

